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From: ACT Health Directorate HR
Sent: Tuesday, 25 January 2022 11:14 AM
To: Gupta, Sangeeta (Health)
Subject: FW: Recruitment Processes for HECC employees

OFFICIAL

From: ACT Health Directorate HR <HDHR@act.gov.au>
Sent:Monday, 1 November 2021 9:56 AM
Subject: Recruitment Processes for HECC employees

OFFICIAL

Dear Colleagues

Our records show that you are currently employed within the Health Emergency Coordination Centre (HECC) and we
are reaching out to you to advise of upcoming job opportunities within the HECC. It is important that you carefully
read this information, as ongoing employment with the Health Directorate will be through the processes that are
outlined below.

The Directorate is currently undertaking a review of HECC�s organisation structure to implement a more sustainable
and efficient structure to support the ongoing response to the COVID 19 public health emergency.

Over the past year it has been difficult to plan for a more sustainable workforce due to the uncertain nature of the
current circumstances. This has resulted in a large number of short term temporary and casual positions, as well as
secondments, to meet the workload demands.

We need to ensure that our recruitment processes are compliant with legislative and enterprise agreement
provisions, including promoting more secure forms of employment wherever we can.

As we continue to work through the HECC staffing requirements from now until June 2022, we will be undertaking
bulk recruitment rounds for the following temporary roles.

Temporary Officers at ASO3 level � to be advertised as �P47821, Several�
Temporary Officers at ASO4 level to be advertised as �P49166, Several�
Temporary Officers at ASO 5 level to be advertised as �P53433, Several�
Temporary Officers at ASO6 level to be advertised as �P47148, Several�

The modification of position descriptions has made our roles more flexible, which will allow us to more flexibly
deploy our resources both within HECC and in the broader Directorate, to meet fluctuating workloads across our
areas of operation.

The principles behind this process are to:

Ensure principles of merit and equity underpin all hiring decisions within the HECC.
Establish merit pools for each classification. The merit pools may also be utilised to offer casual contracts to
eligible candidates for the next 12 months to meet surge requirements.
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 Provide flexibility in the internal deployment of staff, and the ability to internally deploy staff to areas of
business in accordance with operational peaks and troughs.

 Provide longer term options for staff as all the roles will be advertised with the �possibility of extension
and/or permanency�. What this means is that if there are longer term or permanent opportunities in HECC
in future, the merit list can be utilised for up to 12 months.

It is expected that the above roles will be advertised on Jobs ACT next week and the job links will be sent out to all
current HECC employees once published.

Should you be interested in ongoing work with the Directorate, you will be required to participate in these
recruitment processes and undergo the merit selection process. Through your employment with HECC, you have
gained highly valued skills and expertise in providing administrative support in an emergency response environment
which makes you a strong applicant for these processes.

We encourage you to apply and participate in the various merit selection process. Some tips on preparing your
application are available on the ACTPS Jobs website link here. For further information, you can reach out to your
team leader or contact People Strategy and Culture team at HDHR@act.gov.au

Kind regards

Julie Nolan | Senior Director
Pronouns: she/her
Ph: 512 49835 | M: | Email: julie.nolan@act.gov.au
People Strategy, Corporate & Governance | ACT Health Directorate
Level 4, 2 Bowes Street Phillip ACT 2606
health.act.gov.au
I acknowledge the Ngunnawal People, the traditional owners of the land on which we live and work and pay my respects to the elders past,
present and emerging.
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From: ACT Health Directorate HR
Sent: Tuesday, 25 January 2022 11:17 AM
To: Gupta, Sangeeta (Health)
Subject: FW: HECC Recruitment Processes

OFFICIAL

From: Ivansson, Zoe (Health)
Sent: Tuesday, 2 November 2021 10:02 AM
Subject: HECC Recruitment Processes

OFFICIAL

Good morning Colleagues

Following on from our email yesterday on HECC recruitment processes, we are pleased to confirm that the
administrative roles have been advertised on Jobs ACT website.

ASO3 47821, several Careers and Employment (act.gov.au)

ASO4 49166, several Careers and Employment (act.gov.au)

ASO5 53433, several Careers and Employment (act.gov.au)

ASO 6 47148, several Careers and Employment (act.gov.au)

All the above roles have been advertised as temporary roles until 30 June 2022 with the possibility of extension
and/or permanency. A merit pool will be formed from the above processes to fill identical temporary and casual
vacancies at level over the next 12 months. These merit selection processes will supersede other recruitment
processes that have occurred in HECC for the specific roles.

We encourage you to apply for the above roles if you are interested in ongoing work with the Directorate.

Please feel free to contact us if you have any questions.

Kind regards

o d o
Ph: 02 5124 6158 Email: zo i ac gov

t y Co o t G a c t t t
Level 4, 2 Bowes Street Phillip ACT 2606
health.act.gov.au
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Recruitment Round FAQs for Applicants

 

We received a very large number of high-quality applications for all advertised positions. 
 
Within the ACTPS, vacant roles are filled through competitive merit selection processes. 
This ensures that all eligible individuals have a reasonable opportunity to apply and be considered 
for vacancies, and that they are assessed on merit for their suitability for vacant roles.  
 
Each Selection Advisory Committee (SAC) considered all applications based on claims against the 
selection criteria, assessed through written application and referee reports, and/or interviews , in 
accordance with the merit and equity principles contained within ACTPS recruitment policies and 
guidelines. 
 

My manager seemed happy with my performance what happened? 

Input from managers into the recruitment process was provided through referee reports.  If you 
were merit pooled, Managers had the opportunity to validate your application by providing referee 
comments.  Referee input was one component of the competitive merit selection process 
considered by the SAC.  
 
All candidates were assessed based on their application (including referee reports and interview 
where applicable) and merit and equity principles in line with ACTPS recruitment policy.  

What was wrong with my application? 

You may request feedback on your application  please contact the Chair of the SAC. Contact details 
were provided to applicants in the email advising them of the outcome of their application/s. 

Can I appeal the decision? 

A permanent ACTPS officers can seek a review of recruitment processes or appeal certain 
recruitment decisions: 

o Decisions about promotion or temporary transfer to a higher office or role, for periods in 
excess of six months, where the officer was an applicant for the position; 

o This process is available for promotions/temporary transfers to a higher office for roles 
up to to ASO6 (or equivalent classification) and below classifications.  
 

o For roles at the SOG C (and equivalent) and higher levels, an application may be made 
for an internal review of the process (excluding the outcome).   

o For further information please refer to Section K - Appeal and Process Review of certain 
recruitment decisions of the relevant Enterprise Agreement) or contact People Strategy 
for further information. 
 
 

What information can I seek from the Chairperson about my application?  

You can request feedback from the Chairperson of the SAC.  The Chair can provide you with a copy 
of your Individual Assessment, and feedback relating to your application/interview performance if 
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you participated in an interview.  It is useful for you to seek specific feedback from the Chair on how 
you could improve your application in the future. 
 

for? 

A merit pool is a list of applicants who were found meritorious in the recruitment round. These 
applicants are all equally suitable, despite there being a difference in their overall scores. Any of 
these applicants can be made an offer to fill a vacant position, without a further recruitment round, 
for the duration that the merit pool is in place. The merit pool from this recruitment round is valid 
for 12 months from the date the Delegate signed the Selection Report.  
 

contract 
extensions) 

Some staff were extended pending the outcome of the recruitment process. Most affected staff 
were extended until the end of January 2022 to allow the recruitment process to conclude.  
 
Applicants who were successful in this recruitment process can now be extended further or offered 
another position. Applicants who were found suitable may receive extensions of contracts/higher 
duties during the 12-month period the merit pool is valid for. 
 

 

If a suitable vacancy arises for applicants found successful and listed on a merit pool, they may be 
extended or offered another position at the same classification. If the merit pool is exhausted, 
further recruitment rounds may be held. Please monitor the ACT Jobs website where all vacancies 
and details of recruitment rounds are posted: https://www.jobs.act.gov.au/.   
 

Where can I get support (such as support for writing applications or for online 
counselling)? 

All ACT public service employees may access the Employee Assistance Program (EAP). Under the 
EAP, Converge International provides confidential and professional counselling to employees and 
their families and can also assist in preparing job applications. Converge International conducts 
telephone, audio-visual and face-to-face consultations. Employees are not required to tell others in 

attendance. Employees or immediate family can access the EAP service by calling Converge on 1300 
687 327, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week or visiting https://www.convergeinternational.com.au. 
 
There is also an application information kit for people applying for jobs in the ACT public service, 
available at https://www.jobs.act.gov.au/ data/assets/pdf file/0017/1207700/Applicant-
Information-Kit.pdf.  
 

Can I be offered contracts despite being unsuccessful and not merit-pooled 
 

As the COVID response changes in nature, should the Directorate identify that more staff is 
ths.  
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From: ACT Health Directorate HR
To: Gupta, Sangeeta (Health)
Subject: FW: HECC Recruitment FAQ
Date: Tuesday, 25 January 2022 11:18:59 AM
Attachments: HECC Recruitment FAQ.docx

OFFICIAL
 
 

From: Ivansson, Zoe (Health) 
Sent: Monday, 8 November 2021 2:22 PM
Subject: HECC Recruitment FAQ
 

OFFICIAL
 
Good afternoon Colleagues
 
As discussed in our HECC Recruitment information sessions please see attached the FAQ
document.
 
Can managers please distribute this to their teams.
 
Please don’t hesitate to contact me with any further questions.
 
Kind Regards
 
Zoe Ivansson | HR Advisor
Ph: 02 5124 6158 Email: zoe.ivansson@act.gov.au
People Strategy, Corporate and Governance| ACT Health Directorate
Level 4, 2 Bowes Street Phillip ACT 2606
health.act.gov.au
Please contact ACT Health Directorate HR team via 02 51249201 or via HDHR@act.gov.au
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Principles underpinning HECC recruitment processes

The following principles underpin HECC recruitment:

 Business continuity requirements for HECC will be met through ensuring a stable and
sustainable workforce.

 In line with the ACTPS Secure Workforce policy, the Directorate will work towards
being less reliant on casual employment and offer more secure forms of temporary
employment.

 Under the Fair Work Act (FWA) provisions, a person is a casual employee �if they
accept a job offer knowing there is no firm advance commitment to ongoing work
with an agreed pattern of work�. Under this provision we may offer casual
employment for ad hoc work. Where there is regular pattern of work, we should
consider a more secure form of employment such as temporary employment.

 HECC is currently funded to 30 June 2022. Temporary roles will be advertised as
�temporary with the possibility of extension and/or permanency�. It is anticipated
that the HECC will eventually scale down to a smaller business unit within the
Directorate. Advertising in this way will allow retention of trained team members to
form a smaller permanent team.

 Longer contract term options should be offered for temporary staff.
 Merit and equity principles will underpin all HECC recruitment rounds, in line with

ACTPS recruitment guidelines.
 Generic position descriptions will be used to allow flexibility to be redeployed across

the Directorate should the HECC scale down in the future, or allow for deployment
of internal staff to areas of critical need in the event of future surges.

 Merit pools will be established for each classification.
 Merit pools may be utilised to offer casual contracts to eligible candidates for the

next 12 months to meet surge requirements.
 Union consultation has been undertaken for these processes.

Who will need to re apply?

All existing temporary and casual contracts in the HECC will be seen through to their end
dates. Under the ACTPS guidelines, the latest recruitment process for a role supersedes
earlier processes for that role.

For future contract extensions or offering of new contracts, the merit pools generated from
these processes will be utilised. For example, if an employee has a contract until 31 March
2022, this contract will continue through to its end date. However, to extend the contract
beyond 31 March 2022, the employee will need to be in the merit pool generated from the
current recruitment processes.
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Are casual contracts being offered as an option, or will all contracts be temporary for a
fixed term?

The recruitment rounds from ASO3 to ASO6 are for temporary contracts until 30 June 2022
with the possibility of extension and/or permanency. This approach provides greater
flexibility to deliver longer term workforce requirements for the HECC to meet future
business needs.

The merit pool generated from these processes will be utilised for offering casual contracts
for ad hoc work, where required or in case of a surge.

How will the allocation of individuals to teams be managed?

The recruitment panel will work with HECC Managers to understand workforce
requirements and select candidates who are the best fit for the team based on their work
experience, skills, and capabilities. This includes consideration of all work undertaken within
the HECC to date.

Successful candidates will be advised following internal discussions between the panel and
HECC Managers. The manager�s decision to take on an applicant will be determined by the
number of employees they need in their team, and the skills and capabilities required to
meet the business deliverables.

Do Directors and Assistant Directors have input on which successful candidates from their
respective teams?

Discussion will occur between managers and the Workforce Resourcing team. Details of the
merit pool will be provided to understand and manage workforce requirements for each
team. People Strategy and Culture will be working closely with the Workforce Resourcing
team to help facilitate this.

Clarification on contract terms for Senior Officer roles

ASO roles are advertised to 30 June 2022 with possibility of extension and/or permanency.
For Senior Officer (A, B and C) positions, the roles have been advertised for a period of six
months with the possibility of extension up to 12 months. Possibility for permanency for
the Senior Officer roles has not been included in these adverts.

Many of the current HECC managers own nominal roles across the ACTPS and have been
redeployed for the surge. The ASO3 � ASO6 roles are mostly casual or temporary
employees. The use of �possibility of permanency� has been used to align with offering
secure employment should there be such a possibility in future.
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A workforce planning exercise is being undertaken for the HECC. Once completed, the
Directorate will have a greater understanding of the future workforce requirements for the
HECC.

Will positions for Registered Nurses and Health Professional classifications be advertised?

Recruitment processes for Registered Nurses and Health Professionals will take place in mid
late January 2022.

What happens if someone is made permanent and the HECC is deactivated?

All relevant factors will be considered before the delegate offers permanent employment to
an employee.

As is the case with any other permanent employee, ACTPS redeployment guidelines will be
followed should there no longer be a business need for the position in future.

Does the process include interviews, even if I already work here?

As per the ACTPS guidelines, if applicants clearly stand out in their application and are able
to demonstrate the required skills and capabilities satisfactorily, they may be selected
without an interview.

To allow this flexibility, positions will be advertised with the wording �Selection may be
based on application and referee reports only�.

I�ve been in the HECC for 12 months. Can I apply for permanency?

The FWA provisions requires employers to consider conversion of casual employment to
permanent employment when they complete 12 months. The conversion is considered
against the criteria set out in the ACTPS Secure Workforce policy. This includes the
existence of a merit selection process and regular pattern of work.

The Directorate will undertake a review of all casual and temporary employees as required
under the policy in December 2021.
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